
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

NNoovveemmbbeerr  44,,  22002244  
  



 

 
October 29, 2024  2:07:12 PM 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2024 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM 
116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Keyes 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of October 7, 2024 & Closed Session Minutes for the meetings of 
April 1, May 6, June 3, July 1, August 5 and September 9, 2024  

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) RESO 2024-030 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 310 E. Fourth St., Plymouth 
d) RESO 2024-035 PROCLAMATION Supporting Operation Green Light For Active 

Military Service Members In Transition To Civilian Life (Veteran Status) 
e) North Carolina Education Lottery Public School Fund—Network Installation at new 

PreK-12 school = $186,000 
 

Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3 6:20 PM  Departmental Information Update— Cooperative Extension’s “Report to the People”: Ms. 

Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director & Staff 
  
Item 4 6:35 PM America 250th Anniversary, Ms. Chris Barber 
 
Item 5 6:45 PM  Economic Development, Mr. Kelly Chesson, NCACC Strategic Management Coordinator 
 
Item 6 6:55 PM TTA Update, Mr. Tom Harrison, TTA Director 
 
Item 7 7:25 PM   Boards & Committees, Mr. Jason Squires, Deputy Clerk to the Board 

 Planning Board  
 Voting Delegate for the NCACC Legislative Goals Conference 

 
Item 8 7:35 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
 
Item 9 7:45 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
Item 10 7:55 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client 

privilege), and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of October 7, 2024 & Closed Session Minutes for the   
meetings of April 1, May 6, June 3, July 1, August 5 and September 9, 2024  
(see attached at the end of this agenda package) 
 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (see attached) 
 

c) RESO 2024-030 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 310 E. Fourth St., Plymouth 
(see attached) 

 
d) RESO 2024-035 PROCLAMATION Supporting Operation Green Light For Active 

Military Service Members In Transition To Civilian Life (Veteran Status) 
(see attached) 

 
e) North Carolina Education Lottery Public School Fund—Network Installation at 

new PreK-12 school = $186,000 (see attached) 
 

At the September PK12 Steering Committee meeting a delay in anticipated 
supplemental funding which WCS applied for in early 2024 and expected to 
receive by late July to be used to purchase the central IT network and other 
related components for the new PK12 facility was discussed.  Several 
contingency plans were also discussed in order to help facilitate the immediate 
purchase of the network and equipment without further delay.  Following that 
meeting, WCS staff obtained consent from the funding source to move forward 
with the purchase using alternative sources of funds which could then be 
reimbursed upon the receipt of the originally anticipated funding.  Receipt of the 
originally requested funds is not in question, however the exact timing of that 
receipt for bureaucratic process reasons is not guaranteed.   
 



County staff recommends voting to approve WCS’s attached request to draw 
and temporarily use available lottery funds to facilitate the immediate purchase 
of the needed equipment which is also described in their attached cover letter 
which indicates the lotter funds will be returned to the state account after WCS is 
reimbursed once it receives its original funding intended to be used for making 
these purchases.  This is recommended to keep the PK12 project on track toward 
completion as soon as possible. 
 
 
 

















Washington County Resolution 2024-035 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

 
CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 

COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

__________________________________________________ 
RESOLUTION 2024-035 

PROCLAMATION 
 

SUPPORTING OPERATION GREEN LIGHT FOR ACTIVE MILITARY 
SERVICE MEMBERS IN TRANSITION TO CIVILIAN LIFE  

(VETERAN STATUS) 
 

WHEREAS, the residents of Washington County have great respect, admiration, and the 
utmost gratitude for all of the men and women who have selflessly served their country and this 
community in the Armed Forces; and 

 
WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of the men and women that served in the 

Armed Forces have been vital in maintaining the freedoms and way of life enjoyed by our 
citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County seeks to honor these individuals who have paid the high 

price for freedom by placing themselves in harm's way for the good of all; and 
 

WHEREAS, there are approximately 700,000 veterans in the State of North Carolina, 
with 839 of them being in Washington County; and 

 
WHEREAS, Veterans continue to serve their community in the American Legion, 

Veterans of Foreign Wars, church groups, civil service; and 
 

WHEREAS, Approximately 200,000 service members transition to civilian communities 
annually; and 

 
WHEREAS, an estimated 20% increase of service members will transition to civilian life 

in the near future; and 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:acm@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2024-035 Page 2 of 2  

 
WHEREAS, studies indicate that 44% to 72% of service members experience high levels 

of stress during transition from military to civilian life; and 
 

WHEREAS, active military service members transitioning from military services are at a 
high risk for suicide during their first year after military service; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners appreciate the sacrifices 
our United State Military Personnel made while defending freedom and believes specific 
recognition be accorded them in appreciation of their service and to demonstrate the honor and 
support they have earned; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, with designation as a Green Light for Military 

Service County, Washington County hereby declares from November 7, 2022, through 
November 14, 2022, a time to salute and honor the service and sacrifice of our men and 
women in uniform transitioning from Active Service; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as we approach Veterans Day in 2024, the Washington 

County Board of Commissioners hereby proclaim that Washington County recognizes Operation 
Green Light and encourages its citizens and business to honor those whose immeasurable 
sacrifice helped preserve our freedom by displaying a green light in a window of their place of 
business or residence from November 4, 2024 through November 11, 2024. 

 
PROCLAIMED this the 4th day of November 2024. 

                                                                        
_________________________________ 

   Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
      Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Clerk to the Board 
 

        
  















 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:   November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:  November 4, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Department Information Update: Cooperative Extension, Ms. Rebecca 

Liverman, Director & Staff 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Each year, Cooperative Extension does a “report to the people” during the November 
Commissioners meeting.  They will be doing that again this year. 
 
Below are the departments that have already presented at a BoCC meeting this year.  If 
you have a request to hear from a certain department, please contact the Clerk. 
 
Month   Department   Director     
JAN    
FEB Sheriff’s Office  Arlo Norman 
MAR  Elections   Dora Bell 
APR 
MAY 
JUNE Senior Center   Renee’ Collier 
JULY Soil & Water   Chris Respess 
AUG Facilities   Ricky Young 
SEPT Utilities   Lee Sasser 
OCT Tax Office   Sherri Wilkins  
NOV Cooperative Ext.  Rebecca Liverman 
DEC 
 

 
 
 



 
 

List of Departments 
 

  Planning/Inspections  Human Resources 
  EM    Tax  
  EMS    Soil & Water 
  Elections   Utilities 
  Detention   DSS 
  Airport    Facilities 
  Landfill   TTA 
  Finance   Library 
  Register of Deeds  Soil & Water 
  MTW    Sheriff’s Office 
  Senior Center   IT 
  Recreation   E911 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   4 
 
       DATE:    November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        America 250th Anniversary, Ms. Chris Barber 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Chris Barber will speak to the Board regarding the America 250th Anniversary.  Mr. 
Tom Harrison from the TTA will also be able to share some insight into what the 
Committee needs. 
 
See attached memo. 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   October 29, 2024       MEETING DATE: November 4th, 2024 ITEM:  4 
SUBJECT:  America 250th Anniversary Celebration Plans & Marker Placement Request 
DEPARTMENT: America 250th Anniversary Committee & Travel & Tourism Authority (TTA) 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Committee Membership List as of 10/25/24 (1pg) 
B- Example Historical Marker Overview (1pg) 

PURPOSE:  To hear an update from Chris Barber on the current celebration plans being discussed by the America 
250th Anniversary Committee and to consider a request by the Committee to place a 24”x36” historical wayside marker 
on county owned property located at 100 NC Hwy 32N in Roper, NC known as the BCCC WCC Building (formerly 
Windows on the World). 
 
BACKGROUND & STAFF ANALYSIS:   

 
- June 2024 Chris Barber of Ropery, NC reached out to public officials throughout Washington  

County in June of 2024 about the upcoming 250th anniversary celebrations of the Revolutionary 
War and provided basic background information and resources primary available through 
www.america250.nc.gov. 
 

- July 2024 The Board approved Resolution 2024-24 Recognizing and Approving the Official  
Washington County America 250 NC Committee which officially established this local 
committee to plan and facilitate related events in Washington County. 
 

- Sept 2024 Ms. Barber contacted county staff about the local 250th Committee’s intent to pursue grant  
funding to produce several wayside markers to be placed throughout the county including one 
in Roper about a local Colonel Buncombe who fought in the Philadelphia Campaign in 1777, 
and who requested the freedom of his slave named Charles upon his death in 1778. 
 Ms. Barber shared a sample of other similar size way markers for visual information, 
and requested information about how to obtain the County’s consent to place the marker on its 
own property in Roper currently known as the BCCC WCC and formerly known as the 
Windows on the World.  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 

http://www.america250.nc.gov/


Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
- Oct 2024 Staff attended several meetings (TTA & with members of the 250th Committee) to discuss  

the evolving grant application process.  Currently it appears there are 2 primary grants the 250th 
Committee plans to target to help facilitate celebration activities.  As information and 
discussions about the planned celebrations and the potential grants have evolved in recent 
weeks, Tom Harrison has indicated the TTA will take primary responsibility for applying for 
and administering both grants (with oversight by the Finance Office) summarized as follows: 

 
• $10,000 grant to purchase and install 3 24”x36” interpretive Wayside Markers (one 

intended for each municipality)  
 

• $30,000 to purchase materials and items related to facilitating 250th anniversary 
educational and celebratory events.  This grant requires a 10% local match with the 
250th Committee was previously working on raising.  According to Tom Harrison at 
the last TTA meeting, these funds would be used across 3 specific events (one for each 
municipality) including the Bear Festival for Plymouth and the Peanut Festival for 
Roper both of which would contain some elements of 250th anniversary celebration 
components in their larger programs. 

 
- The grant application deadline has been extended due to western NC flood events to December 16th, 2024 

 
- Both Chris Barber and TTA Director Tom Harrison will be on hand at the 11/4/24 board meeting to 

answer additional questions 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS:   

- $0 current anticipated direct impact 
- Indirectly, several hundred/thousand dollars may be incurred in staff resources within the Finance Office over 

the full grant cycle depending largely on the procurement and reporting complexity and the initial compliance 
therewith by the TTA. 

- Temporary loss of use of a small portion of county owned property. 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 

1. VOTE: To grant the County Manager the authority to approve the placement of a 
historical wayside marker at an exact location to be determined by the County Manager in 
consultation with the Facilities Director on county property located at 100 NC Hwy 32N in 
Roper, NC, provided however, the Board shall retain the right to: 

 
a. approve the actual text, message, pictures, or other materials to be included within 

the marker itself prior to its placement; and to 
 

b. remove or relocate the marker to an appropriate alternative location if deemed 
necessary or advisable by the board in the future.  

 



Washington County NC 250th Committee 

 

 

Sergeant Major Arnold 

Bill Barber 

Chris Barber 

Dennie Biggs 

Bobby Brown 

Rosa Brown 

Joy Davenport 

Diana Davis 

Terry Gallop 

Tom Harrison 

Hooker, Ulysses 

Denise Jones 

Ann Keyes 

Rebecca Liverman 

Jill Manring 

Mark Pardue 

Brian Roth 

Jim Sawyer 

Walker, Julius 

 



 
  
Waysides will be 24” x 36” interpretive panels of UV resistant acrylic panels, powder coated 

brown dual leg pedestals constructed for installation in earth. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  November 4, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Economic Development, Mr. Kelly Chesson, NCACC Strategic Management 

Coordinator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Chesson will speak to the Board regarding opportunities for Economic Development 
within the County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:  November 6, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      TTA Update, Mr. Tom Harrison, Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Harrison will give the Board an update on happenings in the TTA including how this 
year’s Bear Festival fared. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  November 4, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
PLANNING BOARD 
 
At their meeting on October 17, 2024 the Washington County Planning Board 
recommended the re-appointment of Mary Barnes to the Planning Board to serve the 
three-year term ending December 31, 2027.   
 
Mrs. Barnes’s current term expires December 31, 2024.   She serves as the Plymouth 
township representative. She has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
VOTING DELEGATE FOR THE NCACC LEGISLATIVE GOALS CONFERENCE 
 
The NCACC Legislative Goals Conference will be held Nov. 14-15, 2024, in Wake County 
at the Marriott Raleigh Crabtree Valley. Each county will be entitled to vote on legislative 
goal proposal submissions brought before the membership. Voting will take place Nov. 14-
15. 
 
To facilitate the voting process, each county is asked to designate one voting delegate (and 
optional alternate voting delegate). 
 
Chair Keyes and Commissioner Johnson are registered for the conference.  The Board needs 
to appoint one as the voting delegate and the other as the optional alternate.  

https://www.ncacc.org/events/legislative-goals-conference-2024/


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget 
amendments/transfers to the Board for approval/disapproval and other information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 





























































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or 

Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

 
 Department Head Reports from October 2024—see attached 

 
 Statistics Reports—see attached 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
November 4, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS Staffing:  
The EMS Division currently has (4) Full Time Paramedic positions open.  The Transport 
Division has (1) Full Time EMT position open.  We are also accepting applications for part-time 
positions for all levels.  The two positions re-classified to AEMT from Basic EMT have been a 
major help to bring ALS to every patient in need.  
 
System Business: 
UNC PECC+ Program:  The program has come to conclusion.  We met all of our 
benchmarks.  The system has  benefitted with funds, pediatric treatment equipment, and 
training.   
 
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program: Flourishing.  Benchmarks are being met and the program is 
providing funding and equipment to get AED's out into the community.  
 
They are watching us... 

 
 
We have experienced two collisions with deer.  Thankfully, none of our staff were injured in 
either accident and both trucks were driveable and repairable.   
 



 

      
 
Thank you for your continued support of Washington-Tyrrell County EMS.  
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
  
Recreation is doing good.  We are still in football and will be playing in Currituck this 
weekend.  Playoffs for football are in November.  We have basketball, concussion, and rules 
clinics on Saturday 8:00 am and Monday 6:00 pm.  Waxing gym floor. Basketball sign up will 
start in November. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
The Board of Elections has been crazy busy! Today is Monday (Oct. 28) and we are over 3000 
voted. We have broken all kinds of records. 

 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
  
Staffing: 
No changes to report. 
 
Programs: 

• Programs have relaxed since school has resumed; we are still hosting our usual 
Wednesday programs (WIP – NOON, In-Person Storytime – 10:30, Virtual Storytime – 
NOON). 

 
 
 



 

Other Library/Community Happenings: 
• Gloria Alexander (local author) is hosting a “Meet the Author” event at the library on 

Thursday, October 24th from 5-7 PM; all are welcome to attend. 
• WCL will be handing out candy/library information at this year’s “Trick or Treat on 

Water Street” event; we hope to be positioned in front of our Little Library.  
• Nyla Boyd (local author) will host a “Meet the Author” event sometime in November; 

this is an event rescheduled due to inclement weather in August. 
• There may be some upcoming holiday events (i.e. Meet Santa) so keep an eye on our 

social media pages – it depends on community interest.  
• The library will be closed November 28th – 30th for Thanksgiving.  

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 



 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 
information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney 
fees and/or suit cost.  

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles.  

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests this month. We have a variation 
of these daily.  



 

4. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

5. The Statistical report was submitted. 
6. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas. Had correspondence with Joe several 

times for assistance with mapping requests.  
7. Received debt set-off payments this month. 
8. I attended the Safety Committee Meeting  
9. The office remains busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, 

exemption questions, questions that always arise after the tax bills are received.  
10. Christal, and Hollie, sat in on a Managing Public Records – Digital 

Communications workshop this month.  
11. Hollie is working on the Public Utility Company billing.  
12. Hollie entered the Drainage District 5 tax bills into our tax collections program.  
13. Still processing prepayments toward tax bills.  
14. The tax bills for the Town of Roper with the solid waste user fee noted were 

mailed out the week ending October 18th.  
15. The tax office staff reviewed the fire drill procedure for our office.  
16. I have a debt setoff meeting in Washington on Tuesday, October 29th. We are 

looking into moving to the Five Star software program for our debt setoff 
needs.  

17. The tax office staff and I really enjoyed the Fall Fling. We appreciate having 
that time to enjoy and meal and hang out with our fellow county employees.  

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 

 

Permits Issued: Building  24 
           Demolition               1 
 
Inspections    49 (not including school) 
Plan Reviews      4 (3 residential; 1 commercial) 
Flood Plain consultations    3 
 
4th, 11th, 18th, 25th  Worked  Tyrrell County Inspections and Permit Reviews 
 
Fire Watch continues to be monitored with Washington Regional Medical Center 
Continue to work on CRS audit documentation 
Consult on subdivision map  - exempt (parcels greater than 5 acres; no roads to be constructed 
 
17th  Planning Board:  Public Hearing continued from September 19; Board recommended denial 
of application for rezoning due to missing information; and application did not meet the 
ordinance requirements.  Consulted with Attorney Curtis Potter for guidance on this ordinance 
concern. 



 

Planning Board recommended re-appointment of Mary Barnes to serve the Planning Board in the  
Plymouth Township district for a three-year term ending on December 31, 2027. 
 
I’d like to report the good work at the Senior Center and at Roanoke Developmental Center for 
passing their annual  fire inspections . 
 
Thank  you for your continued support! 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
Sept. 24 Entered Requisition for Capacity Building Grant Purchase (Boat, Electronics and 
Command Transport Trailer) 

Sept. 30th-Oct.6th -EM-1 Dispatch to Rowan County for WNC Helene Support 

Oct. 9th DHM 

Oct.11th Fall Fling 

Oct. 17th Southern Albemarle Meeting 

Oct.23rd 1 on 1 with Curtis and Jason 

October 28th Public Safety Mtg 

 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Completed Ranking Forms for 2025 Contracts. 
2. Met with Private Drone Pilot and Emergency Management to see what abilities were 

available and what services could be provided with a drone of certain sizes. 
3. Created Contract for Eddie Smith Canal Aquatic Weed Treatment of 11 Acres. Opterra 

Solutions won bid and finished treatment on September 26,2024. 
4. Met with BCCC’s drone course coordinator to discuss possible partnerships and software 

for drone use. (exp:Pix4D) 
5. Inspected and gathered images of flooded areas of Washington County. 
6. Met with wildlife agent to assist in removal of 2 Dams on White Oak Road, Plymouth NC. 
7. Discussed drainage of 2 catfish ponds by the Vernon James Center to start possible 

crawfish farm. 
8. Contacted DOT to address flooding issue with the driveway of fire department in Roper 

NC when we have heavy rainfall. 
9. Turned in and Awaiting approval of Strap contract with the county. Additional funds have 

been awarded putting the total to $259,286.00. 



 

10. Received program review date for December 3, 2024. 8 Folders to be reviewed in the Cost 
Share Program. 

11. Introduced Megan Conner as the Soil and Water Admin Assistant to different departments 
within the county and areas of interest when it comes to locating the technician or 
commonly flooded areas. 

12. Partnered with Hyde County Soil and Water to set up the Soils Tent at Hyde County Field 
Day. 

13. Submitted 94-2025 contracts for Cost Share to Soil and Water Board and State to be 
approved. All contracts were approved by both the Board and State. Cover Crop is the 
focus to reduce sediment and nutrients from washing off into our waterways during the 
fallow times of the year form agricultural fields. 

 
 
Landfill 
VACANT 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
Only Detention Report submitted: 
 

 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
Mediacom: Waiting to hear back from them. Departments remaining to receive digital receiver: 
911 Center, Magistrate’s Office, Jail and Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Tax Office Software Migration: On hold until tax entries are completed. 
 



 

FY24 911 Grant: All components for Fire Alerting Control Station and APX Consolettes have been 
delivered. Installation has been scheduled for October 28. 
 
--Conversations with Mediacom on cabling in Courthouse. 
--Work on quotes/POs/invoices and reconcile IT budget. 
--Review invoices that need to be paid for 911. Discuss with Missy. 
--Review Solarwinds accounts with SSG make corrections and have them quote and invoice. 
--Troubleshoot issue with internet for Phillip Hassell. 
--Put RJ45 ends on 10’ CAT6 cable for Phillip Hassell. 
--Clean up space on SVR01. 
--Compose letter requesting 2024 Grant extension to 911 Board-Curtis signed and sent. 
--Work with Edmunds on version update. Check with departments to verify they can access. 
--Install Edmunds on Senior Center laptop. 
--Check 911 Server Room-water leak from AC unit over electrical box. 
--Send info to Mediacom on digital box in Investigators office to determine what account it is on. 
--Complete setup of Curtis’s laptop. 
--Register Harley Spruill for Virtual Academy PSAP Admin Orientation Training on November 6. 
--Assist Renee with issue opening vpn and Edmunds. 
--Conversations with 911 Board (Angie) concerning grant extension. Waiting to hear back. 
--Research Motorola outstanding invoices. $5,184.38 found to be for Sheriff’s office and  
   $209.72 found to be for EMS. Scan all documentation and email to the Sheriff and Jennifer  
   with a note to get with Finance and let them know if it needs to be paid. 
--Create profile for jbarnes on pc for Edmunds.  
--Install new Edmunds files on Soil & Water laptop. 
--Correct issues and perform updates on five EM tablets. 
--Troubleshoot issue with new wireless keyboard/mouse, contact Dell and will be replaced. 
--Troubleshoot issue with digital receiver in Investigator’s office. Will need to add account. 
--Attend County Manager group meetings. 
--Attend Commissioners meeting. 
--Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
--Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
--Verify CopyPro and VC3 invoices for Finance. 
--Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 

 
 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  

• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 
o The Beacon’s photocell and two regulators were repaired. Currently pending 

calibration and an FAA flight check on the PAPI (Precision Approach Path Indicators) lights 
and the installation of the fence around the beacon. 
• RPZ Obstruction  

o Still pending NCDOA’s review and approval of the Contract Documents and 
Specifications - 100% Design Submittal (not released for construction) and the Engineers 
Opinion of Probable Cost breakdown. Currently working with NCDOA to identify the 
funding source for the construction phase. 

 
 



 

• AWOS 
o This is the first project that our new engineering firm Talbert & Bright is taking 

over. They are working with the Department of Aviation (DOA) on the project scope and 
budget. 

 
Other Activities: 

• Received a quote from Tyco Land Development to mow and clear the ditches – it was 
significantly higher than the budgeted amount, so I will be looking at other options.  

• Attended the Southern Albemarle Association meeting in Nags Head. 
• Attended the NC Airport Community Quarterly Meeting held by NCDOA. 
• Ordered and received 8,000 gallons of Jet A fuel – fuel sales picked up in October! 
 

Revenue Update (as of 10/24): 
• October Fuel Sales:  $12,205.83 
• Total fuel sales for FY25: $24,009.70 
• Hangar Leases:  $13,800 

 
 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• Painting lines at Probation. 
• Painting lines at DSS. 
• Converting lights at the Eater Plant in Roper. 
• Board of Commissioners handicap ramp. 
• Countertop at the Airport. 

 

Maintenance: 

• Completed painting of the Finance Department. 
• Completed 59 work orders. 
• Replaced all of the outside lights at the Library. 
• Trimmed the trees at Probation and Board of Elections. 
• Updated the security system at the Board of Elections. 
• Put out mulch at the Recreation Center and BOE. 

 

Upcoming Projects: 

• Scheduled annual PM service for the generators. 
• Setting up and taking down Election equipment. 

 
 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
    

 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,716,260.60$  3,223,677.93$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (17,589.09)$       (19,877.53)$                          

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 3,143.33$          3,228.27$                              

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      1.85$                   1.85$                                      

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            20,694.17$        22,933.20$                           

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                (205.23)$             -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    37.18$                38.23$                                    

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         24,819.23$        182,487.71$                         

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 88.76$                669.36$                                 

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       6,368.56$          278,826.94$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               237.18$              837.58$                                 

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    0.91$                   7.09$                                      

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               337.46$              1,167.67$                              

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 921.61$              1,004.69$                              

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      1,755,116.52$  -$                  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  3,695,002.99$                     

Initiated 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         91,165.98$                           

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      403,269.52$                         

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  403,269.52$                         

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               259.16$              -$                  550.86$                                 

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  550.86$                                 

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         36,559.47$        0 55,108.37$                           

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            24,831.41$        26,855.62$                           

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      2,177,225.38$  -$                  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  4,366,700.44$                     

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC I have emailed them for an update on the sale of the property or a payment this month. 

VL Group A, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $3,169.17

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $38,512.90

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  

She stated she is giving the owner of the companies the delinquent taxes due for VL Group and Plymouth Solar but he hasn't approved payment yet. 

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91 6.97

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      71,361$      214,083$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      47,445$      174,915$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        2,170$        6,300$            

 Number of Abatements 18 9 4 31                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        413$           6,429.00$      

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 14.14 46.440

Number of Customers 2682 2676 2679 8,037

New taps 2 2 1 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$     14,533.95$             

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131 148

WC Transported 124 95 120 339

WC Refusals 37 36 28 101

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 0 1

SNF to Doctors 112 94 132 338

Hospital Discharges 13 9 19 41

EMS Back Up 4 5 6 15

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 51 168

TC Transported 36 41 39 116

TC Refusals 15 25 12 52

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



43%

13%

22%

15%

7%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 194.95

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 136.18

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 2.40

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 124.04

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 22.05

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   $9,743.10

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         $325.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       $900.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             $408.34
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$            $10.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,386.44

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

$4,000.00

$4,500.00

$5,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24 -25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

85%

3%

8%
4%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 79
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 29
New Member Forms Submitted 8 8
Center-Sponsored Events 450 450
Special Events 149 149
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0
Exercise Room 64 64
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) 0 0
Yoga 8 8
Chair Exercise 51 51
Line Dance (ON HOLD) 8 8
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 13
Drop-in Activities 16 16
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) 0 0
Computers / Wi-fi 4 4
Roper Classes 14 14
Creswell Classes 10 10

YTD Total
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0

YTD Total
748.00$  -$           -$            -$           -$           -$         -$           -$            -$            -$            -$         -$     748.00$       

Congregate Donations to AC 69.00$     69.00$          
MOW Donations to AC 550.00$  550.00$       
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     80.00$          
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     49.00$          

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 169 169
Male 34 34 48 116

Female 8 8 8 24

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 28 28

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

140

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1105

Law Enforcement 853 853
Animal Control 73 73

EMS 179 179

Reported Incidents 31 10 41

Total Arrests 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 2 9

Felony Arrests 10 0 10

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72

Criminal Papers Served 17 4 21

Civil Papers Served 34 17 51

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  75

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 19 26
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 20 49

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 9 19

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERRIFF

FY24-25

7%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



77%

EMS

40

50

60

41

51
49

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     November 4, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(5) (property acquisition) and 
NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



  DRAFT 

 

                        
October 7, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on 
Monday, October 7, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/ 
County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the 
Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order. Commissioner Walker gave the 
invocation. Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes of September 3, 2024, and for Special Called Meetings 

on September 9 & 27, 2024  
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) RESO 2024-033 Continuity of Operations during County Manager’s Absence 
d) RESO 2024-034 Appointing Jason Squires as Deputy Clerk to the Board of 

Washington County 
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None.  

 
DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  TAX DEPARTMENT 

Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator spoke to the Board and handed out the forms listed 
below that are available for citizens: 

 Property Tax Relief for Disabled Veterans 
 Certification of Disability for Property Exclusion (GS 105-2277.1) 
 Application for Property Tax Relief (Elderly or Disabled) 

  
Ms. Wilkins reminded citizens that they are responsible for giving the Tax Office a 

change of address.  
 

Commissioner Spruill told Ms. Wilkins that he appreciates what she and her staff 
do. He asked about the conversion of the new tax software.  Ms. Wilkins said she is waiting 
to talk to the person who is helping with the conversion.  It has been on the backburner.  
She hopes to have a timetable by the November meeting.   



  DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill asked for an update on tax collection.  Ms. Wilkins said she 
does not have a number at this time.  

 
Mr. Potter asked Ms. Wilkins if the tax bills for the Town of Roper had gone out 

yet.  Ms. Wilkins said she hoped to have them out by the end of this week. 
 
Chair Keyes said the Board appreciates what she does. 

 
UPDATE FROM THE SALVATION ARMY:   Sgt. Les Asby of the Salvation 

Army spoke to the Board.  He thanked Chair Keyes for the invitation.  First, he noted that 
Ms. Kathy Winstead, of the Salvation Army, is at the Nazarene Church every Thursday 
accepting applications for Christmas.  

 
Sgt. Asby said the Salvation Army has served over 40,000 meals in WNC.  Their 

office in Asheville was demolished.  
 
Mr. Potter stated that staff can put a link to the Salvation Army on our County 

Facebook page and we can also give the link to the Board. 
 
Sgt. Asby asked what would we like to see the Salvation Army do? Chair Keyes 

said she is aware of what they do because she is always out in the area.   
 
Sgt. Asby said they can feed people.  They have a mobile canteen.  What areas is 

this needed in?  Email him. They will make it happen. They can also help with food, rent, 
and utility assistance.  Email him at Les.Asby@salvationarmy.org. 
 

Chair Keyes thanked him for what he and his organization do. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING (CONTINUATION):  PLANNING BOARD 
RECOMMENDATION:  SIGNAGE REGULATIONS AMENDMENT:  This is a continuation 
of the Public Hearing that was started at the September 3rd Board of Commissioners’ meeting.  
The Board asked for a better explanation of what changes were made in the Sign Ordinance 
Amendment.  Staff has completed documents for more clarification:  a list of changes made and 
a “tracked changes” document, along with a clean document. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to reconvene the Public Hearing. 
Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Pittman spoke to the Board saying that the Board was provided with the documents 
they requested in their Agenda Package.  He also noted that this is the beginning of the 
consolidation of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked about the new #10 item regarding the size of flags. Mr. 
Pittman said they can have a large flag as long as it is under 72’. If someone wants one bigger, 
they will have to come ask for a variance from the Planning Board. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill told Mr. Pittman he appreciates staff taking the time to give the 
Board a better understanding of changes that were made.  
 

mailto:Les.Asby@salvationarmy.org


  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
  
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion passed unanimously. 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Signage Regulations 
Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. Commissioner Walker seconded; motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
 SMOKING & TOBACCO  USE ORDINANCE AMENDMENT:  Mr. Squires, ACM, 
stated that at the September 3 Board meeting, the Board asked staff to define enforcement 
mechanisms more clearly for the Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance Amendment.  There is a 
memo attached with some additional information.  The Board also received the original 
ordinance and the amended ordinance in their Agenda Package.  
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Smoking & Tobacco Use 

Ordinance Amendment.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board spoke to the 
Board about the following requests. 
 

The Washington County Planning Board sent a recommendation to the Commissioners to 
replace Ms. Bunny Saunders (seat for Roper Municipal District) with Mr. Maurice Hill.   The 
seat expires in December 2024 and they are asking to extend his term to December 31, 2027.  
Mr. Hill has agreed to serve if appointed.   
 

 Chair Keyes pointed out Mr. Hill in the audience. 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to appoint Mr. Maurice Hill to the 

Washington County Planning Board for a 3-year term to expire December 31, 2027.  
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

Appointments are up for the Coastal Resources Advisory Council.  Commissioner Spruill 
has been serving on this Board.  Commissioner Spruill said he will serve if re-appointed.  This is 
a two-year term. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to re-appoint Commissioner John 
Spruill to the Coastal Resources Advisory Council (CRAC).  Commissioner Walker 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ amendments 
as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 



  DRAFT 

 

 
 Employee Appreciation Events & Schedule, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board---

Employee Fall Fling, Friday, October 11 from 1:00 PM – 5:00 PM at Flowers Park in 
Plymouth.  Employee Christmas Breakfast, Friday, December 20, from 9:30 AM – 
11:30 AM at the Plymouth Church of Christ Family Life Center. 
 

 Public Safety Awareness Day, October 22, 2024, Vernon James Center.  Chair Keyes 
said this brings our safety responders to the eye of the public.  Ms. Connie Barnes, Code 
Enforcement Officer, said some speakers may now not be able to attend due to being 
deployed to WNC.  DAWG – the disaster assistance work group—which consists of 13 
counties working together, have also been invited.  Apparatus will be brought to be 
displayed such as drones. 

 
 America’s 250th Anniversary, Mr. Curtis Potter said Ms. Chris Barber will be at the 

November Commissioners’ meeting to speak to the Board and to seek approval of 
posting a sign at the BCCC WCC that is about the Civil War. Not sure if they have the 
content yet, but they need the space approved to put in for a $4,000 grant. 

 
 Mr. Potter said we are moving forward with replacing the last portion of the Courthouse 

roof, coordinating with Facilities and the Clerk of Court. 
 

 Staff will be forwarding a copy of the Roanoke, Albemarle, Pamlico (RAP) Regional 
Emergency Operations Plan and a timeline for the Board’s review. 

 
 Mr. Potter thanked folks for all their donations to WNC. He reminded residents to make 

donations of cash only to trusted WNC non-profits.  This is the best way to send support 
to WNC. 

 
 Chair Keyes shared her experiences with disaster relief.  

 
 Commissioner Phelps noted that the Creswell Ruritans will be having a Pancake 

Breakfast this Saturday from 8:00 AM – 11:00 AM this Saturday.  Commissioner Phelps 
also said Brightstar was setting up his neighbors highspeed internet, so he got his place 
on the list and got hooked up too. Thanks to all who worked on getting internet to our 
area. 

 
Mr. Hill thanked the Board for approving him for the Planning Board. 

 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(5) (property acquisition) and NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner                       
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

___________________________    ________________________ 
             Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC         Ann C. Keyes 
                    Clerk to the Board                        Chair 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda November 4, 2024
	11-4-2024 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Releases, Refunds & Insolvents
	RESO 2024-030
	RESOLUTION 2024-035 Green Light for Veterans Nov 2024
	Ann C. Keyes, Chair

	scan_jjordan_2024-10-25-15-10-19
	scan_jjordan_2024-10-25-15-10-57
	11-4-2024 Item 2 (public forum)
	11-4-2024 Item 3 Dept. Info--Coop Ext
	11-4-2024 Item 4 America 250th Anniversary
	BOCC Memo re 250th Revolution Celebration for 20241104 BOCC mtg
	11-4-2024 Item 5 Economic Development
	11-4-2024 Item 6 TTA Update
	11-4-2024 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	11-4-2024 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	10-29-2024 Finance Report
	Budget Amendments and Transfers as of 10-29-2024
	Expenditure Transaction Report - Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 10-29-2024
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 10-29-2024
	11-4-2024 Item 9 Other Items
	Reports for 11-4-2024 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report 10  28  24
	11-4-2024 Item 12 Closed Session
	10-7-2024 Minutes



